
 PC Minutes  
August 24, 2015 

Page 1 of 21 

Complete audio & video from this meeting can be found online: 
http://www.lawrenceks.org/boards/planning-commission/agendas 
 

  
 
PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 
August 24, 2015 
Meeting Minutes 
______________________________________________________________________ 
August 24, 2015 – 6:30 p.m. 
Commissioners present: Butler, Britton, Culver, Denney, Kelly, Liese, Sands, Struckhoff, von Achen 
Staff present: McCullough, Stogsdill, Crick, Day, Larkin, A. Miller, Pepper, Ewert 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES 
Receive and amend or approve the minutes from the Planning Commission meeting of July 22, 2015. 
 
Motioned by Commissioner Kelly, seconded by Commissioner Sands, to approve the July 22, 2015 
Planning Commission minutes. 
 

Motion carried 6-0-2, with Commissioners Denney & Liese abstaining.  
 
COMMITTEE REPORTS 
Receive reports from any committees that met over the past month. 
 
Commissioner Britton said the Horizon 2020 committee had not met since the last meeting. 
 
Commissioner Denney said the Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) met last week and 
approved the Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) amendment for budgeting. 
 
EX PARTE / ABSTENTIONS / DEFERRAL REQUEST 

• Ex parte: 
Commissioner Britton said he had a brief phone conversation with Mr. Pat Watkins related to 
the Southpoint item. 
 
Commissioner Struckhoff said he received an email from Mr. Patrick Watkins and Mr. Doug 
Brown. He said he also received a phone call from Mr. Steve Schwada regarding Southpoint. 
 
Commissioner Culver said he met with Mr. Pat and Dan Watkins regarding Southpoint. He 
said he also had a discussion with Mr. Steve Schwada. 
 
Commissioner Kelly said he spoke with Ms. Allison Vance Moore regarding Southpoint. 
 
Commissioner Sands said he spoke with Ms. Helen Myers regarding Southpoint. 
 

• No abstentions. 
 

 

http://www.lawrenceks.org/boards/planning-commission/agendas


 PC Minutes  
August 24, 2015 

Page 2 of 21 

Complete audio & video from this meeting can be found online: 
http://www.lawrenceks.org/boards/planning-commission/agendas 
 

PC Minutes 8/24/15 
ITEM NO. 1 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT TO HORIZON 2020 CHAPTERS 6 & 

14 (JSC) 
 
CPA-15-00335: Consider a Comprehensive Plan Amendment to Horizon 2020 Chapter 6 to change 
the designation from Auto-Related Commercial to Regional Commercial, and Chapter 14 (Revised 
Southern Development Plan) to revise the future land use designations from medium-density 
residential, traditional neighborhood design, open space, and auto-related commercial uses to 
commercial use at the southeast corner of the intersection of South Lawrence Trafficway and US-
59.  Submitted by Landplan Engineering, P.A. for Armstrong Management L.C. and Grisham 
Management L.C., owners of record.  
 
ITEM NO. 2A  RS10 TO CR; 63.89 ACRES; SE CORNER SLT & US-59 (JSC) 
 
Z-15-00327: Consider a request to rezone approximately 63.89 acres from RS10 (Single-Dwelling 
Residential) District to CR (Regional Commercial) District, located at the southeast corner of the 
South Lawrence Trafficway and US-59. Submitted by Landplan Engineering P.A., on behalf of 
Armstrong Management L.C. and Grisham Management L.C., property owners of record.  
 
ITEM NO. 2B  RS10 TO OS; 2.61 ACRES; SE CORNER SLT & US-59 (JSC) 
 
Z-15-00328: Consider a request to rezone approximately 2.61 acres from RS10 (Single-Dwelling 
Residential) District to OS (Open Space) District, located at the southeast corner of the South 
Lawrence Trafficway and US-59. Submitted by Landplan Engineering P.A. on behalf of Armstrong 
Management L.C. and Grisham Management L.C., property owners of record.  
 
STAFF PRESENTATION 
Mr. Jeff Crick presented items 1, 2A, and 2B together.  
 
APPLICANT PRESENTATION 
Mr. Chris Challis, Collett, said the new proposal tried to address comments from last time. He said 
the project was scaled down and within city limits. He said the completion of the South Lawrence 
Trafficway was a significant public investment. He said the property was easily accessible. He said 
the development was an aesthetically pleasing gateway to Lawrence. He said they wanted to capture 
sales tax that was being spent in other cities.  
 
Mr. Korb Maxwell, Polsinelli Law Firm, went over the golden factors and why the project met each of 
them. He stated the character of the neighborhood was retail and commercial. He said the property 
had zero suitability for its current zoning of residential. He said if the current restriction of single 
family residential was removed it would have a positive impact to nearby land owners. He stated 
commercial retail was a better use for wetlands than heavy auto related commercial. He said the 
property was never meant to be single-family residential. He said the project met and exceeded all 
eight golden factors.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
Ms. Bonnie Johnson said there was already a plan in place for the area and that they should stick 
with the plan for that area. She wanted to protect her property value and the area she lived in. She 
asked Planning Commission to vote no to the development. 

http://www.lawrenceks.org/boards/planning-commission/agendas


 PC Minutes  
August 24, 2015 

Page 3 of 21 

Complete audio & video from this meeting can be found online: 
http://www.lawrenceks.org/boards/planning-commission/agendas 
 

 
Mr. Stan Rasmussen endorsed development at this location. He stated the planning of the South 
Lawrence Trafficway & Iowa intersection foresaw this type of development going there. He said it 
was a major intersection and they needed high quality revenue generating opportunities there. He 
said he could not envision apartments or homes at this location because it was too high traffic and 
too commercial. He said this was the second time the proposal was recommended by staff. He 
encouraged Planning Commission to support the project.   
 
Mr. Brad Finkeldei said he was on the committee and Planning Commission that passed the Southern 
Development Plan and they looked at this area. He said they looked across the city for auto related 
centers to add more car dealerships because at that time there weren’t many car dealerships. He 
said they put into the plan auto related commercial because at the time they could envision another 
auto dealership. He said what had changed since then was the auto dealerships started growing in 
place by remodeling and expanding. He said the area needed for auto related was not necessary 
now. He stated the plan says they should encourage commercial and auto related uses geared 
toward traffic from K-10 Hwy, which sounded like a truck stop to pull people off the highway. He felt 
this should be a gateway to Lawrence and they do not want an auto related use or truck stop there.  
 
Mr. Trevor Marrongelli inquired about right-of-way. He felt there should be an accurate plan before 
approving the rezoning. He wondered who would pay to run infrastructure to the site. He felt the 
guidelines of Horizon 2020 should be followed.  
 
Ms. Mary Jo Shaney, attorney on behalf of K-10/40 Development LLC, opposed the project. She said 
they were being asked to change fundamental long range plans in Horizon 2020 and doing so in 
breakneck speed. She felt amending the Comprehensive Plan was premature. She said the project 
would change the character of the location forever to heavy commercial uses that were not 
envisioned by the long range policies. She said the project would dictate what long range planning 
goals were supposed to be. She said K-10 Hwy was a barrier to these types of uses.  
 
Mr. Jim Bowers, White Goss Law Firm, on behalf of Tanglewood LLC and Hanover Place LLC, said the 
right-of-way owned by KDOT property was included in the application. He said unless the right-of-
way property became property of the applicant the development could not be built. He felt rezoning 
was premature until Horizon 2020 issues were dealt with first.  
 
Mr. Kirk McClure said the timing of the development was important. He felt this project was bad for 
the community. He said sales taxes were paid by consumers, not the vendor. He said there would 
only be a slight bump in property taxes. He said regarding the pull factor the market study was 
flawed. He said jobs were dependent on spending. 
 
Mr. Michael Almon opposed the Comprehensive Plan Amendment and rezoning. He felt it should be 
zoned to Open Space. He said this was in the wrong place for land planning reasons in the 
Comprehensive Plan. He said K-10 Hwy provided a physical barrier. He felt this item should not be at 
Planning Commission until a nodal plan was done for the area.  
 
Ms. Candice Davis, Lawrence Association of Neighborhoods, opposed the project. She did not feel 
the plan should be changed for an individual investor. She felt it would negatively impact existing 
commercial on the Iowa Street corridor. She said infrastructure costs should not be at the City’s 
expense.  

http://www.lawrenceks.org/boards/planning-commission/agendas


 PC Minutes  
August 24, 2015 

Page 4 of 21 

Complete audio & video from this meeting can be found online: 
http://www.lawrenceks.org/boards/planning-commission/agendas 
 

 
Mr. Gary Rexroad said they should try and find a way to help an investor that wanted to come to 
Lawrence. He felt most of the questions brought up tonight were issues that should be addressed by 
City Commission and that Planning Commission should only address land use. He felt this 
intersection of highways was the perfect location for this development. He said the community would 
benefit from a really good retail development. He stated Horizon 2020 had been amended multiple 
times, including for the benefit of Mercato. He supported the Southpoint project.  
 
Ms. Ruby Armstrong owned the tract of land that was being sold and she approved the sale. 
 
APPLICANT CLOSING COMMENT 
Mr. Maxwell said the reason he went through the golden factors was because this was governed by 
statute and regulations. He felt that some of the opposition was using the CPA request to block the 
rezoning for protectionist reasons. He said the existing plan already says heavy commercial. He said 
this was the 50th master plan amendment that had come before Planning Commission, and 
interestingly enough the 48th request was Mercato. He said there had been multiple conversations 
with KDOT regarding the right-of-way process and it would be improved because they were going to 
swap right-of-way.  
 
COMMISSION DISCUSSION 
Commissioner von Achen said she forgot to mention at the beginning of the meeting that she 
received a call from Ms. Marilyn Bittenbender, Colliers International. She asked staff to discuss the 
property to the east between Baker Wetlands and the proposed development site.  
 
Mr. McCullough said it was currently designated for residential purposes.  
 
Commissioner von Achen inquired about the advantage and/or disadvantage of Planned 
Development Overlay. 
 
Mr. McCullough said a Planned Development Overlay was used in the context of the surroundings. 
He said staff encouraged the applicant to use the PD Overlay to understand more about the project. 
He said it was mostly used by applicants because it provided certain variances to development and 
could bring in commercial uses to residential projects. He said mostly PD Overlays benefit the 
developer.  
 
Commissioner von Achen inquired about the greenspace on the south end of this. She asked if it was 
going to be 2 acres or 6 acres of Open Space.  
 
Mr. McCullough said at one point the Open Space zoning was closer to 2.61 acres and it was 
changed to 6 acres. He said the Open Space would be passive recreation, such as trails. 
 
Commissioner von Achen inquired about access to the property. 
 
Mr. McCullough said the staff and the developer had preliminary discussions with KDOT about 
access. He said the discussions involved taking the outer frontage road down to the middle of the 
property. He said an issue KDOT was mindful of was the access point distance from the new ramps 
to K-10. 
 

http://www.lawrenceks.org/boards/planning-commission/agendas


 PC Minutes  
August 24, 2015 

Page 5 of 21 

Complete audio & video from this meeting can be found online: 
http://www.lawrenceks.org/boards/planning-commission/agendas 
 

Commissioner Britton said Mr. Almon mentioned the nodal plan requirements. 
 
Mr. McCullough said the revised Southern Development Plan stood as the sector plan for the 
property.  
 
Commissioner Culver said regarding the right-of-way in the rezoning application it looked like the 
proposed CR zoning was for the SLT land. 
 
Mr. McCullough said in the Code zoning districts go to the center line of right-of-way.  
 
Commissioner Culver asked if KDOT needed to be involved in the rezoning process with property 
they own. 
 
Mr. McCullough said not necessarily. He said the Development Code makes that a matter of fact that 
when rezoning property.  
 
Commissioner Sands inquired about Open Space in the floodplain and mitigation factors of 50% or 
greater 
 
Mr. McCullough said the Open Space zoning actually protects it more than floodplain regulations 
would. He said staff works with the applicant to get amount of Open Space as large as possible.  
 
Commissioner Sands asked if the size of the Open Space was the mitigation factor for the floodplain. 
 
Mr. McCullough said that was correct. He said those types of things would be applied to the site 
plan. 
 
Commissioner Kelly said several public comments talked about opening the door for other properties 
within the same area. He asked about the process for that. 
 
Mr. McCullough said it would be the similar process. He said the only property he could think of was 
the property immediately west, which was smaller and had more floodplain. He said there were also 
some redevelopment parcels north of K-10 that could seek development. He said the property 
immediately east would be vacant until development.  
 
Commissioner Kelly asked if staff saw the floodplain as a boundary for further development south. 
 
Mr. McCullough said for practical purposes he did not see any more development until south of the 
Wakarusa River and the floodway/foodplain. He said staff owed the community a South of the 
Wakarusa Plan. The proposed project had a sector plan but the South of Wakarusa Plan would be 
new opportunity which would need to be assessed.  
 
Commissioner Struckhoff inquired about Mr. Almon’s comment that a nodal plan was required. 
 
Mr. McCullough said staff believed there was already a plan that had gone through the process and 
spoke to the designation. 
 

http://www.lawrenceks.org/boards/planning-commission/agendas


 PC Minutes  
August 24, 2015 

Page 6 of 21 

Complete audio & video from this meeting can be found online: 
http://www.lawrenceks.org/boards/planning-commission/agendas 
 

Commissioner Liese said there had been about arguments for golden factors being met versus not 
being met. He said he was confident staff had met the golden factors in the staff report.  
 
Commissioner Britton inquired about the Comprehensive Plan Amendment that Mr. Finkeldei talked 
about with the pull factor of cars.  
 
Mr. McCullough said staff would have to research the pull factor of cars.  
 
Commissioner Denney inquired about Horizon 2020 consideration that would address this point and 
sections involved.  
 
Commissioner Britton said they had not talked about that section of the plan yet.  
 
Mr. McCullough said they had discussions about retail. He said the conclusion in the issue action 
report was the processing of applications should not necessarily change.  
 
Commissioner Kelly said they had not looked at individual sectors. He said there would always be 
conflict in the Comprehensive Plan. He said he struggled with the idea that because they had not 
completed the Horizon 2020 review they should not look at any Comprehensive Plan amendments. 
He stated there was nothing happening in the Horizon 2020 review that would prevent them from 
making an amendment to the plan. 
 
Commissioner Liese said they should never worry about whether or not to amend it but rather if it 
would benefit the community. 
 
Commissioner Britton said if all people had to do was to check to see if something complied with the 
Comprehensive Plan and Development Code there wouldn’t be a need for Planning Commission or 
City Commission. He said their job was to exercise judgement beyond the page and from time to 
time it requires an amendment.  
 
Commissioner Sands said the majority of commercial policies were not affected.  
 
Commissioner Liese said he was not convinced any of the golden factors were violated, just like 
property taxes were not included in the golden factors.  
 
Commissioner Kelly asked where “nearby” properties extended to.  
 
Mr. McCullough said it was a measure of impacts but it wasn’t exclusive.  
 
Commissioner Britton said the health of the retail market played into golden factor 6.  
 
Commissioner Liese said the cannibalism claim is speculation. He inquired about the impact from 
Rock Chalk Park, Lawrence Sports Pavilion. 
 
Mr. McCullough said there was a report generated recently that he would have to review. 
 
Commissioner Liese asked about the pull factor and how it cannot pull equally from the city.  
 

http://www.lawrenceks.org/boards/planning-commission/agendas


 PC Minutes  
August 24, 2015 

Page 7 of 21 

Complete audio & video from this meeting can be found online: 
http://www.lawrenceks.org/boards/planning-commission/agendas 
 

Ms. Amy Miller, Assistant Planning Director, said the pull factor report was produced by the Kansas 
Department of Revenue for the city as a whole, not different sectors.  
 
Commissioner Liese inquired about pull factors per neighborhood. 
 
Ms. Miller said staff did not have that data. She said the best way to do that would be to look at 
credit card receipts by zip code and that retailers often do that on their own. 
 
Commissioner Denney said it was absolutely reasonable to consider whether what they were doing 
was affecting an area or region.  
 
Commissioner Sands inquired about the traffic into and out of the complex. 
 
Mr. McCullough said the applicant submits the traffic impact study and the City and KDOT review it. 
 
Commissioner Sands asked if the main entrance would require a traffic signal. 
 
Mr. McCullough said it was likely and the developer would incur the cost since it benefited them. 
 
Commissioner Sands wondered how a traffic signal would affect north and south bound traffic. 
 
Mr. McCullough said it would be looked at. 
 
Commissioner Denney asked who would pay for infrastructure. 
 
Mr. McCullough said the cost would be on the developer. He said the City may contribute for certain 
roads that the community would benefit from.  
 
Commissioner Culver inquired about the limitation of a regional commercial center.  
 
Mr. McCullough said it was over the 1.5 million. He said this was one of two corridors that the city 
has for community regional. He said this exists today as a commercial designation. He said they 
were not necessarily adding new commercial to the plan, but changing the form and type of 
commercial.  
 
Commissioner Sands asked if they should refrain from discussing the impacts if not a designated 
regional center.  
 
Commissioner Britton said they do not have to compare regional commercial centers to regional 
commercial centers. He said the impact to any property would be relevant.  
 
Commissioner Liese asked Mr. Maxwell about the term he used of protectionistic. 
 
Mr. Maxwell said there were public comments made about stymied competition instead of looking at 
nearby properties and golden factors.  
 
Commissioner Julia Butler arrived at the meeting at 9:00pm. 
 

http://www.lawrenceks.org/boards/planning-commission/agendas


 PC Minutes  
August 24, 2015 

Page 8 of 21 

Complete audio & video from this meeting can be found online: 
http://www.lawrenceks.org/boards/planning-commission/agendas 
 

Commissioner von Achen inquired about K-10 providing a physical barrier. 
 
Commissioner Kelly said he heard the thought earlier that it was just an extension of what was 
currently on south Iowa and he disagreed with that because it does jump and creates a new 
neighborhood. He felt K-10 was a significant line but felt the project may be appropriate for the 
intensive use designated in the plan for the other side of K-10. He wondered if they were ready to 
leap over K-10.  
 
Mr. McCullough said except for auto related commercial. He said it was typical for the intersection of 
two state highways to have some amount of commercial on all four corners. He said staff believed 
the K-10 line had already been crossed with the sector plan as being designated for auto related 
commercial center. He said a use such as a truck stop was a very real possibility in terms of what 
the Code allows. He said if this project does not win on merit, then one could assume that the 
community wants an auto related use. He said to assume it would stay agriculture forever was a 
poor assumption. He said the property was within the city today and the SLT was being built, which 
were triggers pushing it toward development. 
 
ACTION TAKEN on Item 1 
Motioned by Commissioner Liese, seconded by Commissioner Denney, to approve the 
Comprehensive Plan Amendment (CPA-15-00335) to Horizon 2020 Chapter 6 to change the 
designation from Auto-Related Commercial to Regional Commercial, and Chapter 14 (Revised 
Southern Development Plan) to revise the future land use designations from medium-density 
residential, traditional neighborhood design, open space, and auto-related commercial uses to 
commercial use at the southeast corner of the intersection of South Lawrence Trafficway and US-
59.  
 
Commissioner Britton felt this came down to two issues; did it make sense to change in terms from 
auto related to retail commercial and what would it do to the retail market. He did not feel this was a 
big change but felt it was an improvement over the auto related use. He did not feel the retail 
numbers were cause for huge concern. He did not feel this would hurt downtown or other areas of 
the community. He was confident that the golden factors were met in large part. He said he would 
vote to support the motion. 
 
Commissioner Sands thanked the public for their comments. He felt the overall development fell 
within the Comprehensive Plan amendment. 
 
Commissioner Struckhoff said he was torn on this. He felt this was a dramatic departure from 
Horizon 2020. He was supportive of Collett and the businesses themselves but was not supportive of 
violating the Comprehensive Plan. He said he would not support the motion. 
 
Commissioner von Achen said she struggled with this. She felt it violated the Comprehensive Plan 
and wondered how it would affect other commercial developments. She said she didn’t worry about 
the impact on downtown because it was considerably different. She said it helped to hear Mr. 
Finkeldei’s comments and perspective. She said she would support this despite her reservations 
primarily because she would rather see retail development than auto related development at that 
location. 
 

http://www.lawrenceks.org/boards/planning-commission/agendas


 PC Minutes  
August 24, 2015 

Page 9 of 21 

Complete audio & video from this meeting can be found online: 
http://www.lawrenceks.org/boards/planning-commission/agendas 
 

Commissioner Liese asked Commissioner Struckhoff about his comments regarding a dramatic 
departure from Horizon 2020. 
 
Commissioner Struckhoff said the possible auto related use was not needed anymore. He said the 
Comprehensive Plan did not support increasing the size and adding retail centers. He said the 
current policies have worked so far. He said they planned for retail in the northwest corridor because 
there was more traffic coming in through that area. 
 
Commissioner Kelly said he was reluctant to change Comprehensive Plan and sector plans unless 
there was good public dialogue. He felt like they had received good public dialogue and he felt more 
comfortable changing the plan. He said there would be a public process for other development in the 
area. He said he was supportive of the motion because it was a good opportunity to create a 
gateway to community. 
 
Commissioner Culver said key words such as “nearby” could have multiple interpretations. He was 
concerned about a very concentrated retail section in the southern corridor. He said he would vote 
against the motion because they needed to plan for the future and this would deviate from current 
plans. He said there was no requirement for the businesses to be new to the market so it had the 
potential to create additional vacancies in the community.  
 
Commissioner Denney said the proposed property was no longer agriculture. He said it was in the 
floodplain and at the intersection of major highways. He said to see it as a residential area was 
unrealistic. He felt this was the perfect place for this project. He said he was inclined to vote in favor 
of the motion. He said Horizon 2020 did not consider what might happen here when it was created. 
 
Commissioners Britton and Struckhoff thanked staff and the public.  
 

Motion approved 6-2, with Commissioners Culver and Struckhoff voting in opposition.  
(Commissioner Julia Butler arrived at the meeting late and did not vote on this item) 

 
 
Motioned by Commissioner Liese, seconded by Commissioner Denney, to authorize the Chair to sign 
Planning Commission Resolution PCR-15-00366. 
 

Motion carried 7-1, with Commissioner Culver voting in opposition. 
 (Commissioner Julia Butler arrived at the meeting late and did not vote on this item) 
 
 
ACTION TAKEN on Item 2A 
Motioned by Commissioner Liese, seconded by Commissioner Sands, to approve the rezoning of 
59.80 acres from RS10 (Single-Dwelling Residential) District to CR (Regional Commercial) District, 
and forwarding it to the City Commission with a recommendation for approval based on the findings 
of fact found in this staff report. 
 
Commissioner Liese said he thought they had an enormous amount of properties available for 
residential, which would be good for infill.  
 

Motion carried 6-2, with Culver and Struckhoff voting in opposition. 

http://www.lawrenceks.org/boards/planning-commission/agendas


 PC Minutes  
August 24, 2015 

Page 10 of 21 

Complete audio & video from this meeting can be found online: 
http://www.lawrenceks.org/boards/planning-commission/agendas 
 

 
 
ACTION TAKEN on Item 2B 
Motioned by Commissioner Liese, seconded by Commissioner Denney, to approve the request to 
rezone 6.07 acres from RS10 (Single-Dwelling Residential) District to OS (Open Space), located at 
the southeast corner of the South Lawrence Trafficway and US-59 Highway based on the findings 
presented in this staff report, and forwarding it to the City Commission with a recommendation for 
approval, subject to the following condition: 
 

1. The following uses shall be prohibited: 
a. Public and Civic Use Groups:  

i. Community Facilities; Cemetery, Cultural Center/Library and Funeral and 
Interment, Utility Minor, and Utility Major 

ii. Recreation Facilities; Active Recreation and Entertainment & Spectator Sports, 
Limited 

b. Commercial Use Groups: 
i. Transient Accommodation; Campground 
ii. Parking; Accessory Parking 

c. Other Use Groups 
i. Communication Facilities; Amateur & Receive-Only Antennas, 

Telecommunications Antenna, Telecommunications Tower and Satellite Dish 
ii. Recycling Facilities; Small Collection Recycling Facilities 

 
Motion carried 7-1, with Commissioner Struckhoff voting in opposition. 

 
 

http://www.lawrenceks.org/boards/planning-commission/agendas


 PC Minutes  
August 24, 2015 

Page 11 of 21 

Complete audio & video from this meeting can be found online: 
http://www.lawrenceks.org/boards/planning-commission/agendas 
 

PC Minutes 8/24/15 
ITEM NO. 3A RS7, RM12, PUD TO RM24-PD OVERLAY; 51.85 ACRES; 1800, 1809, 

2021 CROSSGATE DR (SLD) 
 
Z-14-00552: Consider a request to rezone approximately 51.85 acres from RS7 (Single-Dwelling 
Residential) District, RM12 (Multi-Dwelling Residential) District, and PUD [Alvamar] (Planned Unit 
Development) District to RM24-PD Overlay (Multi-Dwelling Residential Planned Development 
Overlay) District including property located at 1800, 1809, and 2021 Crossgate Dr. Submitted by Paul 
Werner Architects on behalf of Alvamar Inc, property owner of record. Deferred by Planning 
Commission on 2/23/15.  
 
ITEM NO. 3B SPECIAL USE PERMIT FOR ALVAMAR; 1800 & 1809 CROSSGATE DR 

(SLD) 
 
SUP-15-00389: Consider a Special Use Permit for Active Recreation uses in the Alvamar Planned 
Development, 1800 and 1809 Crossgate Drive, proposed lots 1 and 3, including tennis courts, 
swimming pools, and accessory structures to community recreation uses. Submitted by Paul Werner 
Architects, for Alvamar Inc, property owner of record. 
 
ITEM NO. 3C PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR ALVAMAR; 1809 CROSSGATE 

DR (SLD) 
 
PDP-15-00247: Consider a Preliminary Development Plan for Alvamar, containing approximately 
50 acres and located at 1809 Crossgate Drive. The plan proposes the construction of a new entrance 
road from Bob Billings Parkway, Multi-Dwelling Structures containing 292 dwelling units, Active and 
Passive Recreation uses including a new clubhouse and event center, and Assisted and Independent 
Living uses containing 124 dwelling units. Submitted by Paul Werner Architects, for Alvamar Inc, 
property owner of record.  
 
STAFF PRESENTATION 
Ms. Sandra Day presented items 3A-3C together.  
 
APPLICANT PRESENTATION 
Mr. Paul Werner, Paul Werner Architects, said this plan would allow Alvamar to continue as a viable 
operation. He said the project was unique because it was as much about buying a business as it was 
land use. He said running and operating a golf course was difficult and that Alvamar had to compete 
with Eagle Bend, which pays little for land and water. He showed a concept plan on the overhead. 
He said some of the key pieces were a new clubhouse, new banquet facility, new wellness/fitness 
center, 2 new pools, and several ponds to deal with irrigation. He said a new street was proposed to 
Bob Billings Parkway. He stated nothing was being added, other than the 24 guest rooms. He said all 
the components being replaced or improved were already there today. He said they had no intention 
of a nightclub but that the City did not have language for a banquet facility. He stated they did 
eventually hope to develop cabins. He said not everything on the plan was answered but that they 
would agree to bring the Final Development Plan back to Planning Commission to allow for public 
comment. He said regarding staff report condition 1b for the Rezoning the office use was too 
specific. He said he was fine with the staff report conditions for the Special Use Permit. He said 
regarding the staff report conditions for the Preliminary Development Plan 1d he would like to cross 
out the word approval. He said regarding condition 1e he understood that sidewalks were required 

http://www.lawrenceks.org/boards/planning-commission/agendas


 PC Minutes  
August 24, 2015 

Page 12 of 21 

Complete audio & video from this meeting can be found online: 
http://www.lawrenceks.org/boards/planning-commission/agendas 
 

on each side of the street unless a waiver was obtained. He said regarding condition 1g (iii) he felt 
should be revised to not be so specific with the pool language. He felt condition 1h should be 
eliminated and was duplicated with 1d. He also felt that condition 1n should be eliminated.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
Mr. Doug Lawrence, 2106 Greenbrier Drive, said he understood the issue of return on investment. 
He said the greater share of his net worth was in his home and he wanted a good rate of return on 
it. He said he was not against the project but was concerned about safety, security, and access to 
the center of the golf course. He felt no construction should take place until there was another 
access road off of Bob Billings Parkway. He stated the density of the project and the nature of 
construction would put a terrible hardship on those living in the neighborhood.  
 
Mr. Paul Davis, attorney representing the Woodfield Meadows West Home Owners Association and 
Woodfield Meadows Condominium Association, said his clients were concerned about increased 
traffic and activity on their road. He said they were supportive of the new entrance to Alvamar off of 
Bob Billings Parkway and said the developer had been good to work with regarding that issue. He 
expressed concern about the existing access from Crossgate Drive onto Bob Billings Parkway. He 
would like that access closed. He said his clients also had concerns about construction traffic. He 
stated there were also existing drainage issues in the neighborhood. 
 
Ms. Lori Haesty, 1901 Quail Run, was glad this version of the plan included the PD Overlay. She 
expressed concern regarding lot 1 and the setbacks. She felt the overall zoning with PD Overlay was 
the right direction to go. She expressed concern about the shared access and wondered how that 
would look. She also wondered about the phasing of development. She said she supported the 
rezoning with PD Overlay. 
 
Mr. Steve Koger, 2004 Crossgate Dr, expressed concern about water drainage issues. He also 
expressed concern about bright lighting for parking. 
 
Mr. Bob Johnson, 957 Coving Dr, said the shareholders group did not have the energy or resources 
to move Alvamar into the future as it should be moved. He felt the shareholders group had done a 
pretty good job of finding a new owner and felt it was the best move for Alvamar and the 
community.  
 
APPLICANT CLOSING COMMENT 
Mr. Werner said he understood the concerns regarding construction traffic and said most of it could 
be sent down the south side of Crossgate. He did not think the new road could be built at the same 
time but that there may be other options for access. He said he would work on a construction plan 
with staff.  
 
COMMISSION DISCUSSION 
Commissioner Denney asked where the street Crossgate was public and where it was private. 
 
Ms. Day showed a map on the overhead. She said streets listed in red were private and streets listed 
in black were public. She said Crossgate Drive was a unique piece of access that had a public street 
segment that extended into a private street. She said the segment of Crossgate Drive that was north 
of the clubhouse all the way to Bob Billings Parkway was private.  
 

http://www.lawrenceks.org/boards/planning-commission/agendas


 PC Minutes  
August 24, 2015 

Page 13 of 21 

Complete audio & video from this meeting can be found online: 
http://www.lawrenceks.org/boards/planning-commission/agendas 
 

Commissioner von Achen asked if they would have to come back for RM24 development for all four 
lots. 
 
Ms. Day said that was correct. She said there was a provision in the Development Code that 
potentially allowed additional density above what was approved but that was not part of this project.  
 
Commissioner Culver said one of the public speakers mentioned the private access drive of Quail 
Run. He inquired about access to that drive. 
 
Mr. McCullough said it would be addressed with the Preliminary Development Plan. 
 
Ms. Day said it would also be addressed through the Subdivision Plat. 
 
Commissioner Britton inquired about the timing of construction for the new road. 
 
Mr. Werner said he would prefer to have some density and activity revenue.  
 
Commissioner Butler asked what he meant by timing. 
 
Mr. Werner said he meant a phasing plan with a threshold of what could be occupied before the 
road was done and usable. 
 
Mr. McCullough said staff’s starting point is the road goes in first and then development. He felt at 
least a construction type road should be in place. 
 
Commissioner Britton was optimistic that they could work out the timing of the road construction. 
 
ACTION TAKEN on Item 3A 
Motioned by Commissioner Kelly, seconded by Commissioner Liese, to approve the request to rezone 
(Z-14-00552) approximately 51.85 acres from RS7 (Single-Dwelling Residential) District, RM12 
(Multi-Dwelling Residential) District, and PUD [Alvamar] (Planned Unit Development) District to 
RM24-PD (Multi-Dwelling Residential Planned Development Overlay) District based on the findings 
presented in the staff report subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. Only the following non-residential uses shall be allowed as reflected in the Preliminary 
Development Plan: 

a. Retail Uses as accessory to the golf course; 
b. Office uses accessory to the direct operation of the golf course and banquet facility or 

management of accessory uses directly associated with the golf course; 
c. Eating and Drinking Establishments to include a Nightclub (to be operated as a 

banquet/reception facility only, Fast Order Food; Quality Restaurant; and Accessory 
Bar uses.  

d. Transient Accommodations to include a Hotel with not more than 24 guest rooms. 
 
 

Motion unanimously approved 9-0. 
 
 

http://www.lawrenceks.org/boards/planning-commission/agendas


 PC Minutes  
August 24, 2015 

Page 14 of 21 

Complete audio & video from this meeting can be found online: 
http://www.lawrenceks.org/boards/planning-commission/agendas 
 

ACTION TAKEN on Item 3B 
Motioned by Commissioner Kelly, seconded by Commissioner Liese, to approve a Special Use Permit 
(SUP-15-00389) for Active Recreation uses  to be incorporated in the Alvamar PD located at 1800 
and 1809 Crossgate Drive, proposed Lot 3 Alvamar Preliminary Development Plan, including, 
swimming pools and accessory structures to community recreation uses and forwarding the request 
to the City Commission with a recommendation of approval.  
 

Motion unanimously approved 9-0. 
 
 
ACTION TAKEN on Item 3C 
Motioned by Commissioner Kelly, seconded by Commissioner Liese, to approve the Alvamar 
Preliminary Development Plan (also serving as the Preliminary Plat) based upon the findings of fact 
presented in the body of the staff report and forwarding a recommendation for approval to the City 
Commission subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. Provision of a revised Preliminary Development Plan to include the following notes and changes: 

a. Proposed Zoning for all lots should be listed as “RM24-PD”. 
b. A complete list of allowed uses, as reflected in this report, shall be added to the face of the 

Preliminary Development Plan.  
c. Revise plan to include a note regarding property owners waiving rights to protest changes to 

the plan. Lacking such note, all property owners will be required to participate in any future 
application or change to the approved plan. 

d. Revised plan shall include a note that states the applicant shall submit a complete drainage 
study for review and approval by the City Stormwater Engineer concurrent with each Final 
Development Plan application for any lot or phase of the development.   

e. Revised plan shall include a note that states sidewalks shall be required on both sides of all 
public and private streets. 

f. Provision of a note on the face of the plan stating that the property owner shall maintain 
common open space.  

g. Provision of a revised plan to include specific notes regarding proposed Lot 2: 
i. Sheet two shall be revised and parking summary updated to correctly reflect total 

proposed units 292 residential units and 422 bedrooms for Lot 2.  
ii. Provision of a site summary for Lot 2 that includes existing and proposed building 

cover, surface coverage, and open space.  
iii. Provision of a note that states that the required recreational open space for 

residential uses on Lot 2 shall be satisfied with the final development plan.  
h. Provision of a note on the plan that indicates that the Final Development Plans for this 

property are required to be presented to the Planning Commission for approval following the 
notice requirements of Section 20-1301(q). 

i. Revision of the Preliminary Development Plan to include a note that a phasing plan shall be 
submitted with the first Final Development Plan for demolition of the existing clubhouse on 
Lot 1, construction of improvements proposed on Lots 2 and 3, and street and utility 
installation.  Said phasing plan shall address construction routes to the development areas. 

j. Provision of a note on the plan that shared parking review and final parking space 
requirements will occur with review of each Final Development Plan submission. 

k. Provision of a note on the plan that states the banquet/reception facility shall only be used 
for conventional banquet/reception uses.  The Nightclub use assigned to this facility for 

http://www.lawrenceks.org/boards/planning-commission/agendas


 PC Minutes  
August 24, 2015 

Page 15 of 21 

Complete audio & video from this meeting can be found online: 
http://www.lawrenceks.org/boards/planning-commission/agendas 
 

Development Code purposes shall not provide a right to use the facility as a Bar or Nightclub 
operation. 

l. Provision of a note that states a revised Traffic Impact Study, stating proposed uses, shall be 
required with the submission of a future application for a Preliminary Development Plan for 
Lot 1 and Lot 4.  

m. Provision of a revised plan to show and/or note that private parking along the golf course 
holes will be screened from errant golf balls per Staff approval. 

 
2. The following notes and changes are required to meet minimum Subdivision Requirements:  

a. Revise right-of-way for Crossgate Extension to show 60’ of right-of-way for a local street. 
b. Revise plan to add a note that roundabouts will need to be designed appropriately with Public 

Improvement Plans to support turning truck traffic and pedestrian crossings.   
c. Revise drawing to show access connection to existing parking lot on Lot 1 and connection to 

Quail Run, the existing private street on the west side of the Crossgate Drive extension. 
d. Revise drawing to clearly show proposed lot boundaries and existing lot boundaries of the 

Jayhawk Golf Training Center Addition and include a note stating the lot will be replatted with 
a future Final Plat that includes Lot 2 and/or Lot 3, whichever occurs first. 

 
 

Motion unanimously approved 9-0. 
 
 

http://www.lawrenceks.org/boards/planning-commission/agendas


 PC Minutes  
August 24, 2015 

Page 16 of 21 

Complete audio & video from this meeting can be found online: 
http://www.lawrenceks.org/boards/planning-commission/agendas 
 

PC Minutes 8/24/15 
ITEM NO. 4A  CN2 TO CS; 4.87 ACRES; 2100 W 25TH ST & 2435 IOWA ST (SLD) 
 
Z-15-00329: Consider a request to rezone approximately 4.87 acres from CN2 (Neighborhood 
Commercial Center) District to CS (Commercial Strip) District, located at 2100 W 25th St & 2435 Iowa 
St. Submitted by Landplan Engineering, for Holiday Lawrence LLC and 2435 Iowa Partners LLC, 
property owners of record.  
 
ITEM NO. 4B  CN2 TO CS; 7.26 ACRES; 2525 IOWA ST (SLD) 
 
Z-15-00330: Consider a request to rezone approximately 7.26 acres from CN2 (Neighborhood 
Commercial Center) District to CS (Commercial Strip) District, located at 2525 Iowa St. Submitted by 
Landplan Engineering, for 2525 Iowa LLC, property owner of record.   
 
STAFF PRESENTATION 
Ms. Sandra Day presented 4A-4B together.  
 
APPLICANT PRESENTATION 
CL Maurer, Landplan Engineering, was present for questioning.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
No public comment. 
 
ACTION TAKEN on Item 4A 
Motioned by Commissioner Liese, seconded by Commissioner Denney, to approve the request to 
rezone, Z-15-00329, approximately 4.87 Acres, from CN2 (Neighborhood Commercial) District to CS 
(Commercial Strip) District based on the findings presented in the staff report and forwarding it to 
the City Commission with a recommendation for approval. 
 

Unanimously approved 9-0. 
 
ACTION TAKEN on Item 4B 
Motioned by Commissioner Liese, seconded by Commissioner Denney, to approve the request to 
rezone, Z-15-00330, approximately 7.26 acres, from CN2 (Neighborhood Commercial Center) District 
to CS (Commercial Strip) District based on the findings presented in the staff report and forwarding 
it to the City Commission with a recommendation for approval. 
 

Unanimously approved 9-0. 
 

http://www.lawrenceks.org/boards/planning-commission/agendas


 PC Minutes  
August 24, 2015 

Page 17 of 21 

Complete audio & video from this meeting can be found online: 
http://www.lawrenceks.org/boards/planning-commission/agendas 
 

PC Minutes 8/24/15 
ITEM NO. 5  IG TO IL; 2.66 ACRES; 808 E 28TH ST (BJP) 
 
Z-15-00332: Consider a request to rezone approximately 2.66 acres from IG (General Industrial) 
District to IL (Limited Industrial) District, located at 808 E 28th St. Submitted by Allen Belot Architect, 
for Glenn E Bohmann Trustees, property owner of record.  
 
STAFF PRESENTATION 
Ms. Becky Pepper presented the item. 
 
APPLICANT PRESENTATION 
Mr. Allen Belot was present for questioning. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
No public comment. 
 
ACTION TAKEN 
Motioned by Commissioner von Achen, seconded by Commissioner Sands, to approve the request to 
rezone, Z-15-00332, approximately 2.66 acres, from IG (General Industrial) District to IL (Limited 
Industrial) District based on the findings presented in the staff report and forwarding it to the City 
Commission with a recommendation for approval. 
 
 Unanimously approved 9-0. 
 
 

http://www.lawrenceks.org/boards/planning-commission/agendas


 PC Minutes  
August 24, 2015 

Page 18 of 21 

Complete audio & video from this meeting can be found online: 
http://www.lawrenceks.org/boards/planning-commission/agendas 
 

PC Minutes 8/24/15 
ITEM NO. 6 TEXT AMENDMENT FOR PARKING & ACCESS STANDARDS (SMS) 
 
TA-13-00235: Continue discussion related to proposed Text Amendments to the City of Lawrence 
Land Development Code, Article 9 and related sections of Chapter 20, for comprehensive revisions to 
parking and access standards. Discussion will focus on defining types of Major Recreational 
Equipment and identifying permitted parking locations for this equipment on residential properties. 
Action on this item will not occur until after the commission completes their discussion on several of 
the elements of the code language and a final draft is available for their review.  
 
ACTION TAKEN 
Moved by Commissioner Britton, seconded by Commissioner Denney, deferred since they did not 
have time to consider. 
 
 Motion carried 9-0 
 

http://www.lawrenceks.org/boards/planning-commission/agendas


 PC Minutes  
August 24, 2015 

Page 19 of 21 

Complete audio & video from this meeting can be found online: 
http://www.lawrenceks.org/boards/planning-commission/agendas 
 

PC Minutes 8/24/15 
ITEM NO. 7 SPECIAL USE PERMIT FOR ROCK CHALK PARK; 100 ROCK CHALK LN 

(MKM) 
 
SUP-15-00334: Consider a Special Use Permit for an indoor/outdoor KU Tennis Facility at Rock 
Chalk Park, located at 100 Rock Chalk Lane. Submitted by Paul Werner Architects, for RCP LLC, 
property owner of record.  
 
 
Item No. 7 was deferred prior to the meeting. 
 

http://www.lawrenceks.org/boards/planning-commission/agendas


 PC Minutes  
August 24, 2015 

Page 20 of 21 

Complete audio & video from this meeting can be found online: 
http://www.lawrenceks.org/boards/planning-commission/agendas 
 

PC Minutes 8/24/15 
MISCELLANEOUS NEW OR OLD BUSINESS 
Consideration of any other business to come before the Commission. 
 
 
MISC NO. 1 INITIATE TEXT AMENDMENT (JSC) 
 
Initiate a Text Amendment to the City of Lawrence Land Development Code, Chapters 4, 5, 9 and 
17, to define and create an Event Center use. 
 
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
No public comment 
 
ACTION TAKEN 
Motioned by Commissioner Sands, seconded by Commissioner Britton, to initiate a Text Amendment 
to the City of Lawrence Land Development Code, Chapters 4, 5, 9 and 17 to define and create an 
Event Center use.  
 
 Motion carried 9-0. 
 
 

http://www.lawrenceks.org/boards/planning-commission/agendas


 PC Minutes  
August 24, 2015 

Page 21 of 21 

Complete audio & video from this meeting can be found online: 
http://www.lawrenceks.org/boards/planning-commission/agendas 
 

PC Minutes 8/24/15 
MISC NO. 2 MINOR SUBDIVISION VARIANCE FOR UNIVERSITY FIELD SUBDIVISION 

NO. 6; 1745 W 19TH TERR (SLD) 
 
Minor Subdivision, MS-15-00342, variance request to reduce the right-of-way radii for an existing 
cul-de-sac and to allow subdivision to exclude construction of public sidewalks along W. 19th Terrace 
per section 20-813(g) of the Land Development Code for University Field Subdivision No. 6 , located 
at 1745 W. 19th Terrace. Submitted by Matthew and Jessica Douglas for Mountain Top LLC, owners 
of record. 
 
STAFF PRESENTATION 
Ms. Sandra Day presented the item. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
No public comment 
 
ACTION TAKEN 
Motioned by Commissioner Sands, seconded by Commissioner Butler, to approve the variance 
request for Minor Subdivision (MS-15-00342) to reduce the right-of-way radii for an existing cul-de-
sac and to allow subdivision to exclude construction of public sidewalks along W. 19th Terrace. 
 
 Motion carried 9-0. 
 
 
ADJOURN 11:29pm 
 
 
 

http://www.lawrenceks.org/boards/planning-commission/agendas

	PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES

